

2009-10 Citizenship Survey

Questions





2009-10 Citizenship Survey

Questions

September 2010

For further information on the Citizenship Survey, including the full questionnaire script, please contact:

Citizenship Survey Team Communities and Local Government 7/E8 Eland House Bressenden Place London SW1E 5DU

Citizenship.Survey@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Communities and Local Government Eland House Bressenden Place London SW1E 5DU Telephone: 0303 444 0000 Website: www.communities.gov.uk

© Crown Copyright, 2010

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

This publication, excluding logos, may be reproduced free of charge in any format or medium for research, private study or for internal circulation within an organisation. This is subject to it being reproduced accurately and not used in a misleading context. The material must be acknowledged as Crown copyright and the title of the publication specified.

Any other use of the contents of this publication would require a copyright licence. Please apply for a Click-Use Licence for core material at www.opsi.gov.uk/click-use/system/online/pLogin.asp, or by writing to the Office of Public Sector Information, Information Policy Team, Kew, Richmond, Surrey TW9 4DU

e-mail: licensing@opsi.gov.uk

If you require this publication in an alternative format please email alternativeformats@communities.gsi.gov.uk

Communities and Local Government Publications Tel: 0300 123 1124 Fax: 0300 123 1125 Email: product@communities.gsi.gov.uk Online via the Communities and Local Government website: www.communities.gov.uk

September 2010

ISBN: 978-1-4098-2554-8

Contents

SECTION 1: Demographics	2
SECTION 2: Identity and Social Networks	8
SECTION 3: Your Community	10
SECTION 4: Influencing Political Decisions and Local Affairs	
SECTION 5: Volunteering	24
SECTION 6: Objective Empowerment	
SECTION 7: Race	35
SECTION 8: Religion	40
SECTION 9: Mixing	
SECTION 10: Respect	
SECTION 11: Self Identity	50
SECTION 12: Violent Extremism	54
SECTION 13: Media Usage	59
SECTION 14: Demographics Part II	62

SECTION 1: Demographics

SHGInt

I'd like to know a little about the members of your household who shop and cook as a group. Can you tell me the names of **everyone** in your household?

Sex

- (1) Male
- (2) Female

AgeIf

What was your age last birthday?

MarS

Are you currently...

- (1) single, that is never married,
- (2) married and living with [husband/wife],
- (3) a civil partner in a legally-recognised Civil Partnership,
- (4) married and separated from your husband/wife,
- (5) divorced,
- (6) or widowed?
- (7) SPONTANEOUS ONLY In a legally recognised Civil Partnership and separated from his/her civil partner
- (8) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Formerly a civil partner, the Civil Partnership now legally dissolved
- (9) SPONTANEOUS ONLY A surviving civil partner: his/her partner having since died

Live

May I just check, are you living with someone in the household as a couple?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No
- (3) Spontaneous only same sex couple

Hhld

In whose name is the accommodation owned or rented?

- (1) This person alone
- (2) This person jointly with another household member
- (3) NOT owner/renter

Household Reference Person

HiHNum

You have told me that *(names)* jointly own or rent the accommodation. Of these, who has the highest income (from earnings, benefits, pensions and any other sources)?

HRP

THE HOUSEHOLD REFERENCE PERSON IS:

QhRels

CODE RELATIONSHIP OF OTHER HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS TO THE RESPONDENT – [NAME OF EACH OTHER HOUSEHOLD MEMBER] IS [RESPONDENT'S NAME]...

- (1) [Husband/wife]
- (2) Cohabitee/partner
- (3) Son/daughter (incl. adopted)
- (4) Step-son/daughter
- (5) Foster child
- (6) Son-in-law/daughter-in-law
- (7) Parent/guardian
- (8) Step-parent
- (9) Foster-parent
- (10) Parent-in-law
- (11) Brother/sister (incl. adopted)
- (12) Step-brother/sister
- (13) Foster-brother/sister
- (14) Brother/sister-in-law
- (15) Grand-child
- (16) Grand-parent
- (17) Other relative
- (18) Other non-relative

FTrans

IS A FAMILY MEMBER OR FRIEND ACTING AS A TRANSLATOR FOR THIS INTERVIEW OR READING OUT THE SHOWCARDS TO THE RESPONDENT?

- (1) Yes translator
- (2) Yes reading out showcards
- (3) No

Heth

SHOWCARD 1

Looking at this card, which of these best describes the **ethnic groups** of all the people who live in this household?

Not all the same ethnic group

All White All Asian or Asian British All Black or Black British All Mixed race All Chinese All other ethnic group

Ethnic

SHOWCARD 2

Please could you look at this card and tell me which of these best describes your ethnic group?

WHITE

- (1) White British
- (2) White Irish
- (3) Gypsy or Irish Traveller
- (4) Any other White background

MIXED

- (5) Mixed White and Black Caribbean
- (6) Mixed White and Black African
- (7) Mixed White and Asian
- (8) Any other mixed background

ASIAN OR ASIAN BRITISH

- (9) Asian or Asian British Indian
- (10) Asian or Asian British Pakistani
- (11) Asian or Asian British Bangladeshi
- (12) Any other Asian/Asian British background

BLACK OR BLACK BRITISH

- (13) Black or Black British Caribbean
- (14) Black or Black British African
- (15) Any other Black/Black British background

(16) CHINESE

(17) ANY OTHER ETHNIC GROUP

EthnicO

How would you describe your ethnic group?

HcobA

In which country were you born? IF RESPONDENT SAYS BRITAIN, PROBE FOR COUNTRY

- (1) England
- (2) Wales
- (3) Scotland
- (4) Northern Ireland
- (5) UK, Britain (don't know country)
- (6) Republic of Ireland
- (7) Hong Kong
- (8) China
- (9) Other (specify)

Cameyr

Which year did you arrive in this country?

BrnMom

In which country was your mother born?

England Wales Scotland Northern Ireland UK, Britain (don't know country) Republic of Ireland Hong Kong China Other (specify)

BrnDad

In which country was your father born?

- (1) England
- (2) Wales
- (3) Scotland
- (4) Northern Ireland
- (5) UK, Britain (don't know country)
- (6) Republic of Ireland
- (7) Hong Kong
- (8) China
- (9) Other (specify)

SMain

Which language do you speak most often at home?

(1) English

(2) Welsh
(3) Punjabi
(4) Gujarati
(5) Bengali
(6) Urdu
(7) Hindi
(8) Cantonese
(9) Somali
(10) Polish
(11) Arabic
(12) Other, please specify

SGood

Can I just check, in day-to-day life, how good are you at **speaking** English when you need to? For example to have a conversation on the telephone or talk to a professional such as a teacher or a doctor?

Would you say you are ...

- (1) very good,
- (2) fairly good,
- (3) below average,
- (4) or poor?
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: No opinion

Reading

And can I just check, in day-to-day life, how good are you at **reading** English when you need to? For example reading newspapers and magazines or instructions for medicine or recipes?

Would you say you are ...

- (1) very good,
- (2) fairly good,
- (3) below average,
- (4) or poor?
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Cannot read English
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: No opinion

Writing

And can I just check, in day-to-day life, how good are you at **writing** in English when you need to? For example writing letters or notes or filling in official forms?

Would you say you are ...

- (1) very good,
- (2) fairly good,
- (3) below average,
- (4) or poor?

- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Cannot write English
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: No opinion

DIntro1

I'd now like to ask you about your employment.

DworkA

Can I just check, do you have a paid job?

(1) Yes

(2) No

DWorkA1

Are you working as an employee or are you self-employed?

(1) Employee

(2) Self-employed

DworkB

Have you had a paid job as an employee in the last five years?

(1) Yes

(2) No

DworkC

Have you looked for work as an employee at any time in the last five years?

(1) Yes(2) No

SECTION 2: Identity and Social Networks

SIntroA

I'm now going to ask you a couple of questions about how you see yourself.

NatIdE (if in England)

SHOWCARD 3

What do you consider your national identity to be? Please choose your answer from this card. Please choose as many or as few as apply.

- (1) English
- (2) Scottish
- (3) Welsh
- (4) Irish
- (5) British
- (6) Other (specify)

NatIdW (if in Wales)

SHOWCARD 4

What do you consider your national identity to be? Please choose your answer from this card. Please choose as many or as few as apply.

- (1) Welsh
- (2) English
- (3) Scottish
- (4) Irish
- (5) British
- (6) Other (specify)

FeBrit

SHOWCARD 5

To what extent do you agree or disagree that you personally feel a part of British society? Please choose your answer from this card.

- (1) Strongly agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Strongly disagree
- (5) Spontaneous only- Don't know

SIntro6

Now some questions about your friends.

SInc

What proportion of your friends have similar incomes to you? Would you say...

- (1) all similar,
- (2) more than a half,
- (3) about a half,
- (4) or less than a half?
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Don't have any friends

SRace

[*]And what about ethnic group. What proportion of your friends are of the same **ethnic group** as you? Would you say...

- (1) all the same,
- (2) more than a half,
- (3) about a half,
- (4) or less than a half?

SFaith

And what about religion? What proportion of your friends are of the same **religious group** as you? Would you say...

- (1) all the same
- (2) more than a half
- (3) about a half
- (4) or less than a half?
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Not part of any faith group

SAge

And what about age group? What proportion of your friends are of the same **age group** as you? Would you say...

- (1) all the same
- (2) more than a half
- (3) about a half
- (4) or less than a half?

SECTION 3: Your Community

SIntro2

SHOWCARD 6

I now want to ask you about a number of different places. Using the answers on this card please tell me how strongly you feel you belong to each place.

SBeNeigh

[*]First, your immediate neighbourhood?

- (1) Very strongly
- (2) Fairly strongly
- (3) Not very strongly
- (4) Not at all strongly
- (5) Don't know

SBeLoc

[*]And now **your local area**? By this I mean the area within a 15-20 minute walk from your home

(1) Very strongly
 (2) Fairly strongly
 (3) Not very strongly
 (4) Not at all strongly
 (5) Don't know

SBeGB

[*]Britain?

- (1) Very strongly
- (2) Fairly strongly
- (3) Not very strongly
- (4) Not at all strongly
- (5) Don't know

SIntro3

I'm going to talk about two different areas: your immediate neighbourhood and then a slightly larger area. For the first few questions I want you to focus on your immediate neighbourhood.

SLive

Roughly how many years have you lived in this neighbourhood?

SEnjoy

[*]Would you say that this is a neighbourhood you enjoy living in?

- (1) Yes, definitely
- (2) Yes, to some extent
- (3) No

SPull

SHOWCARD 7

[*]To what extent would you agree or disagree that people in this neighbourhood pull together to improve the neighbourhood? Please choose your answer from this card.

- (1) Definitely agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Definitely disagree
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Nothing needs improving
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Don't know

SSafe

SHOWCARD 8

[*]And how safe would you feel walking alone in this neighbourhood after dark? Please choose your answer from this card.

- (1) Very safe
- (2) Fairly safe
- (3) A bit unsafe
- (4) Very unsafe
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Never walks alone after dark

STrust

[*]Would you say that

- (1) many of the people in your neighbourhood can be trusted,
- (2) **some** can be trusted,
- (3) a **few** can be trusted,
- (4) or that **none** of the people in your neighbourhood can be trusted?
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Just moved here

SIntro5

Now I'd like to ask you about your wider local area. I mean the area within 15-20 minutes walking distance.

Slocsat

SHOWCARD 9

Overall, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with your local area as a place to live?

- (1) Very satisfied
- (2) Fairly satisfied
- (3) Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- (4) Fairly dissatisfied
- (5) Very dissatisfied
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY- Don't know

STogeth

SHOWCARD 10

[*] To what extent do you agree or disagree that this local area is a place where people from different backgrounds get on well together? Please choose your answer from this card.

- (1) Definitely agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Definitely disagree
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY- Too few people in the local area
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY- All same backgrounds
- (7) SPONTANEOUS ONLY- Don't know

MixPrev

What sorts of things, if any, stop people from different backgrounds from getting on well together in this local area?

SEthArea

[*]Now thinking about the **mix** of people in this local area. What proportion of people in this local area are of the same ethnic group as you? Would you say ...

- (1) all the same,
- (2) more than a half,
- (3) about a half,
- (4) or less than a half?

SRespect

SHOWCARD 10

[*]And would you agree or disagree that residents in this local area respect ethnic differences between people? Please choose your answer from this card.

- (1) Definitely agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Definitely disagree
- (5) Don't know

GTlocat

SHOWCARD 11

Can you tell me which, if any, of the things on this card are located within a 15-20 minute walk of your home?

a primary school a hostel for homeless people a nightclub a Gypsy or Irish traveller site a centre for the detention of asylum seekers sheltered housing for elderly people None of these

Tgtmi

I now want to ask you whether you mind having certain things located in your local area.

GTmi

SHOWCARD 12

Do you **mind** having [places from GTlocat] within 15-20 minutes walk of your home?

- a primary school
- a hostel for homeless people
- a nightclub
- a Gypsy or Irish traveller site
- a centre for the detention of asylum seekers
- sheltered housing for elderly people
 - (1) Yes, a lot
 - (2) Yes, a little
 - (3) No, not very much
 - (4) No, not at all

Tgtm2

I now want to ask you whether you WOULD mind having certain things located in your local area.

Gtm2

SHOWCARD 12

Would you **mind** having [places from GTlocat] within 15-20 minutes walk of your home?

- a primary school
- a hostel for homeless people
- a nightclub
- a Gypsy or Irish traveller site
- a centre for the detention of asylum seekers
- sheltered housing for elderly people
 - (1) Yes, a lot
 - (2) Yes, a little
 - (3) No, not very much
 - (4) No, not at all

BetWors

On the whole, do you think that over the past two years this area has got better or worse to live in or would you say things haven't changed much?

- (1) The area has got better
- (2) The area has got worse
- (3) The area has not changed much
- (4) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Have lived here less than 2 years

WIntro1

SHOWCARD 13

Most of us worry at sometime or other about being a victim of crime. Using one of the phrases on this card, could you tell me how worried you are about the following

WRaceAt

How worried are you about being physically attacked because of your skin colour, ethnic origin or religion?

- (1) Very worried
- (2) Fairly worried
- (3) Not very worried
- (4) Not at all worried
- (5) Don't know

WGenWor

Thinking about all types of crime in general, how worried are you about becoming a victim of crime?

- (1) Very worried
- (2) Fairly worried
- (3) Not very worried
- (4) Not at all worried
- (5) Don't know

WHrsmnt

SHOWCARD 14

There are a number of things that can cause problems for people in their local area. In this local area how much of a problem is racial or religious harassment even if it doesn't affect you personally?

- (1) Very big problem
- (2) Fairly big problem
- (3) Not a very big problem
- (4) Not a problem at all
- (5) Don't know- SPONTANEOUS ONLY

SHrsmnt

SHOWCARD 15

Thinking about anything that has happened in this local area have you personally experienced harassment because of your skin colour, ethnic origin or religion in the last two years in any of the ways listed on the card?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

ShrsmtA

What type of harassment was this? Please choose all that apply.

- (1) Verbal harassment
- (2) Physical attack
- (3) Damage to property
- (4) Threats
- (5) Prefer not to say

SWhyhar

And why do you think you were subject to this harassment? Was it because of...

 (1) your skin colour,
 (2) your ethnic origin,
 (3) or your religion? Don't know

LIntro1

SHOWCARD 16

I now want to talk to you about local services. I'm going to read out a list of services that are provided locally. Using the answers on this card I'd like you to tell me how satisfied or dissatisfied you are with each one.

PSchl

[*] So, firstly...

Local schools (would you say you are...)

(1) Very satisfied
 (2) Fairly satisfied
 (3) Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
 (4) Fairly dissatisfied
 (5) Very dissatisfied
 (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY - Don't know
 (7) SPONTANEOUS ONLY - Not applicable

PCHous

[*] Local council housing or Housing Association housing. (would you say you are...)

- (1) Very satisfied
- (2) Fairly satisfied
- (3) Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- (4) Fairly dissatisfied
- (5) Very dissatisfied
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Don't know
- (7) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Not applicable

PYouth

Local services for young people (would you say you are...)

- (1) Very satisfied
- (2) Fairly satisfied
- (3) Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- (4) Fairly dissatisfied
- (5) Very dissatisfied
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Don't know
- (7) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Not applicable

Pparks

Local public parks (would you say you are...)

- (1) Very satisfied
- (2) Fairly satisfied
- (3) Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- (4) Fairly dissatisfied
- (5) Very dissatisfied
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Don't know
- (7) SPONTANEOUS ONLY No parks in local area

LocSat

Taking everything into account, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the way your local authority runs things? Please choose your answer from this card.

- (1) Very satisfied
- (2) Fairly satisfied
- (3) Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- (4) Fairly dissatisfied
- (5) Very dissatisfied
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Don't know

Pshop

Thinking about your local area, do you think the shopping facilities have got better or worse over the last three years or have they stayed the same?

- (1) Better
- (2) Worse
- (3) Stayed the same
- (4) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Just moved here
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Don't know

SECTION 4: Influencing Political Decisions and Local Affairs

PIntro1

Now thinking about whether you can influence political decisions and local affairs.

PActUK

SHOWCARD 17

In the last 12 months have you contacted any of the people listed on the card? Please exclude contact with councillors or council staff for personal issues such as housing repairs, and contact through work.

- (1) Local councillor
- (2) Member of Parliament (MP)
- (3) Public official working for the local council
- (4) Government official
- (5) Elected member of the Greater London Assembly including the Mayor of London
- (6) Public official working for the Greater London Assembly/Authority
- (7) Elected member of the Welsh Assembly Government including the First Minister
- (8) Public official working for the Welsh Assembly Government
- (9) None of the above

PRally

And in the last 12 months, have you

- (1) attended a public meeting or rally,
- (2) taken part in a public demonstration or protest,
- (3) or, signed a petition?
- (4) None of the above

POften

And over the last 12 months, how often have you done [this kind of thing/**all** of the things you've just mentioned]?

Would you say it was

- (1) at least once a week,
- (2) less than once a week but at least once a month,
- (3) or less often?
- (4) Other

POfOth

In the **last 12 months** how many times have you done [this kind of thing/all the things you have mentioned]?

PConsul

SHOWCARD 18

In the last 12 months have you taken part in a consultation about local services or problems in your local area in any of the ways listed on this card?

- (1) Completing a questionnaire (about local services or problems in the local area)
- (2) Attending a public meeting (about local services or problems in the local area)
- (3) Being involved in a group set up to discuss local services or problems in the local area
- (4) None of these

PConOft

And about how often **over the last 12 months** have you done this kind of thing/all the things you have mentioned? Would you say it was

- (1) at least once a week,
- (2) less than once a week but at least once a month,
- (3) or less often?
- (4) Other

POfOth1

About how many times in the last 12 months have you done this kind of thing/all the things you have mentioned?

PIntro2

SHOWCARD 19

Now thinking about whether you can influence decisions. Please look at this card and tell me whether you agree or disagree with the following statements.

PAffLoc

[*]Firstly, do you agree or disagree that you can influence decisions affecting your local area?

- (1) Definitely agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Definitely disagree

(5) Don't know

PAffWal

[*]And affecting Wales?

- (1) Definitely agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Definitely disagree
- (5) Don't know

PAffLon

[*]And affecting London?

- (1) Definitely agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Definitely disagree
- (5) Don't know

PAffGB

[*]And affecting Britain?

- (1) Definitely agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Definitely disagree
- (5) Don't know

PInfl

How important is it for **you personally** to feel that you can influence decisions in your local area? Would you say it is ...

- (1) very important,
- (2) quite important,
- (3) not very important,
- (4) or not at all important?
- (5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Don't know

PCSat

Generally speaking, would you like to be more involved in the decisions your Council makes which affect your local area?

- (1) Yes (2) No
- (2) INO (2) Dense
- (3) Depends on the issue

PIfHow

SHOWCARD 20

If you wanted to influence decisions in your local area **how** would you go about it? Please choose your answers from this card

- (1) Contact the council / a council official
- (2) Contact my councillor
- (3) Contact my MP
- (4) Contact my assembly member (for Wales and London)
- (5) Sign a petition
- (6) Organise a petition
- (7) Attend a council meeting
- (8) Attend a public meeting
- (9) Contact local media or journalists
- (10) Other (specify)
- (11) SPONTANEOUS ONLY- Wouldn't do anything
- (12) Don't know

PIfEas

SHOWCARD 21

On this card are some things people have said would make it easier for them to influence decisions in their local area. Which, if any, of these might make it easier for **you** to influence decisions in your local area?

- (1) If I had more time
- (2) If the council got in touch with me and asked me
- (3) If I could give my opinion online / by email
- (4) If I knew what issues were being considered
- (5) If it was easy to contact my local councillor
- (6) If I knew who my local councillor was
- (7) If I could get involved in a group making decisions about issues affecting
- my local area/neighbourhood
- (8) Something else
- (9) Nothing
- (10) Don't know

PifEasO

What else would make it easier?

PIntro3

SHOWCARD 22

Now I'd like to ask a few questions about trust. Firstly, looking at this showcard, how much do you trust....

PTPolc

[*]The police (Do you trust them a lot, a fair amount, not very much, or not at all?)

- (1) A lot
- (2) A fair amount
- (3) Not very much
- (4) Not at all

PTParl

[*]Parliament (Do you trust them a lot, a fair amount, not very much, or not at all?)

A lot
 A fair amount
 Not very much
 Not at all

PTWal

[*] The Welsh Assembly (Do you trust them a lot, a fair amount, not very much, or not at all?)

(1) A lot(2) A fair amount(3) Not very much(4) Not at all

PTCncl

[*]Your local council (Do you trust them a lot, a fair amount, not very much, or not at all?)

(1) A lot
 (2) A fair amount
 (3) Not very much
 (4) Not at all

PTrust

I'd now like to ask you how you view other people. Generally speaking, would you say that most people can be trusted, or that you can't be too careful in dealing with people?

- (1) People can be trusted
- (2) You can't be too careful
- (3) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Depends

PIntro4

I'm now going to ask you for your opinion on a different issue...

HseV

SHOWCARD 23

How much do you agree or disagree that people whose housing needs are more urgent should receive priority in housing allocation over those who have been waiting longer, but whose needs are less urgent?

(1) Strongly agree
 (2) Tend to agree
 (3) Tend to disagree
 (4) Strongly disagree
 (5) Don't know

SECTION 5: Volunteering

FIntro1

I'd like you to think about any groups, clubs or organisations that you've been involved with during the last 12 months. That's anything you've taken part in, supported, or that you've helped in any way, either on your own or with others. Please **exclude** giving money and anything that was a requirement of your job.

FIntro2

In a moment I'll give you some cards. Please pick out the ones which best describe any groups, clubs or organisations you've taken part in, supported or helped over the last 12 months. On each card are some examples, although what you do may not be on the cards.

FIfGp

- (1) Has selected card(s)
- (2) No cards selected

FGroup

CODE ALL CARDS SELECTED.

- (A) Children's education/schools
- (B) Youth/children's activities (outside school)
- (C) Education for adults
- (D) Sport/exercise (taking part, coaching or going to watch)
- (E) Religion
- (F) Politics
- (G) The elderly
- (H) Health, Disability and Social welfare
- (I) Safety, First Aid
- (J) The environment, animals
- (K) Justice and Human Rights
- (L) Local community or neighbourhood groups
- (M) Citizens' Groups
- (N) Hobbies, Recreation/Arts/Social clubs
- (O) Trade union activity
- Other
- None of these

FUnPd

SHOWCARD 24

Now I'd like you to look at this showcard.

In the last 12 months, have you given unpaid help to [the group, club or organisation/any of the groups, clubs or organisations] you've just mentioned in any of the ways shown on this card?

- (A) Raising or handling money/taking part in sponsored events
- (B) Leading a group/member of a committee
- (C) Organising or helping to run an activity or event
- (D) Visiting people
- (E) Befriending or mentoring people
- (F) Giving advice/information/counselling
- (G) Secretarial, admin or clerical work
- (H) Providing transport/driving
- (I) Representing
- (J) Campaigning
- (K) Other practical help (eg helping out at school, shopping)
- (L) Any other help
- (M) None of the above

FUnOft

And over the last 12 months, how often have you done something to help [this/these] group(s), club(s) or organisation(s)?

Would you say ...

- (1) at least once a week,
- (2) less than once a week but at least once a month,
- (3) or less often?
- (4) Other
- (5) Don't know

FOthOFT

About how many times in the last 12 months have you helped [this/these] [group/groups]?

FUnHrs

Now just thinking about the past **4 weeks**. Approximately how many **hours** have you spent helping [this/these] [group/groups] in the past 4 weeks?

FIndGpA

SHOWCARD 25

How did you find out about opportunities to give unpaid help to [this/these] [group/groups]?

- (A) Through previously using services provided by the group
- (B) From someone else already involved in the group
- (C) From a friend not involved in the group/by word of mouth

- (D) Place of worship
- (E) School, college, university
- (F) Doctor's surgery
- (G) Community centre
- (H) Library
- (I) Promotional events/volunteer fair
- (J) Local events
- (K) Local newspaper
- (L) National newspaper
- (M) TV or radio (local or national)
- (N) Volunteer bureau or centre
- (O) Millennium Volunteers
- (P) Employer's volunteering scheme
- (Q) Careers centre/careers fair
- (R) www.do-it.org.uk
- (S) **v** / www.vinspired.com
- (T) Other internet/organisational website
- (U) Other way

FIndGpO

In what other way did you find out?

MxFVol

SHOWCARD 26

Now thinking about the unpaid help you've given as part of a group, club or organisation in the last 12 months. How often, if at all have you mixed with people from different ethnic or religious groups to yourself as part of this? Please think about all of the people you mix with as part of this activity. Please choose your answer from the card.

PROMPT IF NECESSARY: This includes people who you help or the people you work alongside, but not people you happen to encounter as part of helping (e.g. going to shops for an elderly person and happening to be in a shop with people from different ethnic groups?).

(1) Daily
 (2) Weekly
 (3) Monthly
 (4) At least once a year
 (5) Less often than once a year
 (6) Never
 (7) Don't know

EIntro

I've now got some questions about employment volunteering.

GEmpVol

Some employers have schemes for employees to help with community projects, voluntary or charity organisations, or to give money. Does your employer offer anything of this sort?

- (1) Both helping and giving
- (2) Scheme for helping only
- (3) Scheme for giving only
- (4) Neither
- (5) Don't know

GDoEmpl

And can I just check, have **you** participated in any activities of this sort that were encouraged by your employer, in the **last 12 months**?

- (1) Yes helping only
- (2) Yes giving only
- (3) Yes BOTH helping AND giving
- (4) No

GVEmp3

Now thinking just of the scheme for helping. Is the helping scheme **only** for activities or projects that are relevant to your employer's business?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

GOften

And about how often have you done this kind of thing over the last 12 months?

Would you say it was

- (1) at least once a week,
- (2) less than once a week but at least once a month,
- (3) or less often?
- (4) other

GOfOth

About how many times in the last 12 months have you done this?

GEmpHr

Now just thinking about the PAST 4 WEEKS. Approximately how many hours have you spent helping through an employer scheme in the past 4 weeks?

BVLon

SHOWCARD 27

(1) Looking at this card you've said that during the last 12 months you have not done any of these things for any groups, clubs or organisations. Have you done any of these things – **unpaid – longer than 12 months ago**?

(2) You said earlier that you have not been involved with any groups, clubs or organisations in the last 12 months. Looking at this card, have you done any of these things - **unpaid** - for a group, club or organisation you may have been involved with **longer than 12 months ago**?

(A) Raising or handling money/taking part in sponsored events
(B) Leading the group/member of a committee
(C) Organising or helping to run an activity or event
(D) Visiting people
(E) Befriending or mentoring people
(F) Giving advice/information/counselling
(G) Secretarial, admin or clerical work
(H) Providing transport/driving
(I) Representing
(J) Campaigning
(K) Other practical help (eg helping out at school, shopping)
(L) Any other help
None of the above

BVHelp

(1) You said earlier that you help group(s)/ club(s)/organisation(s) occasionally, that is less than once a month. Do you ever feel that you would like to spend any more time helping groups, clubs or organisations, or not?

(2) You said earlier that you help group(s)/club(s)/organisation(s). Do you ever feel that you would like to spend any more time helping groups, clubs or organisations, or not?

(3) Do you ever feel that you would like to spend any time helping groups, clubs or organisations, or not?

(1) Yes (2) No

VBarr

SHOWCARD 28

(1) On this card are some reasons people have given about why they don't give unpaid help to groups, clubs or organisations. Which, if any, of these are reasons why you don't give unpaid help to groups, clubs or organisations?

(2) On this card are some reasons people have given about why they don't give unpaid help to groups, clubs or organisations. Which, if any, of these are reasons

why you have not given unpaid help to groups, clubs or organisations in the last 12 months?

(3) On this card are some reasons people have given about why they don't give unpaid help to groups, clubs or organisations. Which, if any, of these are reasons why you don't give unpaid help to groups, clubs or organisations more regularly?

(A) I have work commitments
(B) I have to look after children/the home
(C) I have to look after someone who is elderly or ill
(D) I have to study
(E) I do other things with my spare time
(F) I'm too old
(G) I'm too young
(H) I don't know any groups that need help
(I) I haven't heard about opportunities to give help
(J) I'm new to the area
(K) I have never thought about it
(L) I have an illness or disability that I feel prevents me from getting involved
(M) Other reason (specify)

VBarOth

What is the other reason?

IIntro1

Now I want to ask you about any unpaid help you **as an individual** may have given to other people; that is apart from any help given through a group, club or organisation. This could be help for a friend, neighbour or someone else **but not a relative**

IHlp

SHOWCARD 29

In the last 12 months have you done any of these things, **unpaid**, for someone who was **not a relative**?

- (1) Keeping in touch with someone who has difficulty getting out and about (visiting in person, telephoning or e-mailing)
- (2) Doing shopping, collecting pension or paying bills
- (3) Cooking, cleaning, laundry, gardening or other routine household jobs
- (4) Decorating, or doing any kind of home or car repairs
- (5) Babysitting or caring for children
- (6) Sitting with or providing personal care (e.g. washing, dressing) for someone who is sick or frail
- (7) Looking after a property or a pet for someone who is away
- (8) Giving advice
- (9) Writing letters or filling in forms

- (10) Representing someone (for example talking to a council department or to a doctor)
- (11) Transporting or escorting someone (for example to a hospital or on an outing)
- (12) Anything else
- (13) No help given in last 12 months

IHlpOft

Over the past 12 months about how often have you done this kind of thing/all the things you have mentioned?

Would you say ...

- (1) at least once a week,
- (2) less than once a week but at least once a month,
- (3) or less often?
- (4) Other

IOthOft

About how many times in the last 12 months have you done this?

IHlpHrs

Now just thinking about the **past 4 weeks**. Approximately how many **hours** have you spent doing this in the past 4 weeks?

MxIVol

SHOWCARD 30

Now thinking about the unpaid help you've given as an individual in the last 12 months. How often, if at all, have you mixed with people from different ethnic or religious groups to yourself as part of this. Please think about all of the people you mix with as part of this activity?

PROMPT IF NECESSARY: This includes people who you help or the people you work alongside, but not people you happen to encounter as part of helping (e.g. going to shops for an elderly person and happening to be in a shop with people from different ethnic groups).

(1) Daily
 (2) Weekly
 (3) Monthly
 (4) At least once a year
 (5) Less often than once a year
 (6) Never
 (7) Don't know

GIntro1

Now some questions about the ways in which people can give to charity.

GGroup

SHOWCARD 31

In the past 4 weeks, have you given any money to charity in any of the ways shown on this card or through any other method? Please **exclude** donating goods or prizes.

Money to collecting tins (e.g. door-to-door, in the street, in a pub, at work, on a shop counter, etc.)
Sponsorship
Collection at church, mosque or other place of worship
Collections using a charity envelope
Buying raffle tickets (NOT national lottery)
Buying goods from a charity shop or catalogue
Direct debit, standing order, covenant or debit from salary, payroll giving
Giving to people begging on the street
Occasional donations by cheque or credit/debit card
Fundraising events (e.g. charity dinners, fetes, jumble sales)
Other method of giving
Did not give to charity

Givoth

What other method or methods have you given by?

GivAmt

About how much in total have you given to charity in the last 4 weeks?

TEUse

SHOWCARD 32

Taxpayers who give to charities can increase the amount of money a charity gets by claiming tax relief on the donations. In the last 12 months have you used any of the methods shown on the card to obtain tax relief on any donations you've made to charity?

IF RESPONDENT QUERIES THE DEFINITION OF TAX RELIEF: Tax relief may involve a charity reclaiming tax back directly from Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs (formerly the Inland Revenue) to increase the value of a donation OR it may involve individuals making donations from their pre-tax salary and the tax going directly to the charity rather than to Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs.

- (A) Payroll giving (Give As You Earn)
- (B) Gift Aid
- (C) Giving via Self-Assessment Form

- (D) Tax relief on the value of gifts of shares, land or buildings given to charities
- (E) No, none of these

TEUse1

SHOWCARD 32

And have you used any of the methods you've just mentioned in the last 4 weeks?

IF RESPONDENT QUERIES THE DEFINITION OF TAX RELIEF: Tax relief may involve a charity reclaiming tax back directly from Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs (formerly the Inland Revenue) to increase the value of a donation OR it may involve individuals making donations from their pre-tax salary and the tax going directly to the charity rather than to Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs.

IF NECESSARY: Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs is the government department responsible for collecting taxes.

Payroll giving (Give As You Earn) Gift Aid Giving via Self-Assessment Form Tax relief on the value of gifts of shares, land or buildings given to charities No, none of these

TEUse2

SHOWCARD 33

On this card are some things that people have said would encourage them to give to charity. Would any of these things encourage you to start giving to charity or to increase the amount you currently give?

- (A) Having more information about the different charities or organisations that I could support.
- (B) Receiving letter/ email of thanks from the charity or organisation.
- (C) Receiving information from the charity or organisation explaining what has been done with my donation.
- (D) Being asked by the charity or organisation to increase my donation.
- (E) Confidence that the charity or organisation uses the money efficiently.
- (F) Being able to give money by tax efficient methods.
- (G) More generous tax relief.
- (H) Being asked by a friend or family member.
- (I) If I had more money.
- (J) If payroll giving became available to me.
- (K) None of these

SECTION 6: Objective Empowerment

CAIntro

Now I have some questions about activities in your local community.

CivAct1

SHOWCARD 34

In the last 12 months, have you done any of the things listed on this card? Please include any activities you have already told me about. Please do not include any activities related to your job.

- (1) Been a local councillor (for local authority, town or parish)
- (2) Been a school governor
- (3) Been a volunteer Special Constable
- (4) Been a Magistrate
- (5) None of these

CivFolA

SHOWCARD 35

Looking at the card, would you be interested in doing any of these things?

(1) Yes

(2) No

CivFolB

Which ones?

- (1) A local councillor (for local authority, town or parish)
- (2) A school governor
- (3) A volunteer Special Constable
- (4) A Magistrate
- (5) None of these

CivAct2

SHOWCARD 36

And again in the last 12 months, have you been a member of any of the groups listed on this card? Please include any activities you have already told me about. Please do not include any activities related to your job.

- (1) A group making decisions on local health services
- (2) A decision making group set up to regenerate the local area
(3) A decision making group set up to tackle local crime problems

(4) A tenants' group decision making committee

(5) A group making decisions on local education services

(6) A group making decisions on local services for young people

(7) Another group making decisions on services in the local community

(8) None of these

SECTION 7: Race

RIntr1

I'm now going to ask you some questions about racial prejudice.

RPrej1

[*] First, thinking about **racial** prejudice in Britain today, do you think that there is now...

- (1) less racial prejudice than there was five years ago,
- (2) more than there was five years ago,
- (3) or about the same amount?
- (4) Don't know/can't say

RHowM

[*]Do you think that there is now **much** more racial prejudice or just a **little** more than there was 5 years ago?

- (1) Much more now
- (2) A little more now
- (3) Don't know/ Can't say

RWhoM

[*]Which groups do you think there is now **more** racial prejudice against, compared with five years ago.

RHowL

[*]Do you think that there is now **much** less racial prejudice or just a **little** less than there was 5 years ago?

- (1) Much less now
- (2) A little less now
- (3) Don't know/ Can't say

RWhol

[*]Which groups do you think there is now **less** racial prejudice against, compared with five years ago.

ROrg

SHOWCARD 37

Please look at this card and tell me which of these organisations you have had any direct contact with over the past **five** years as a member of the public?

- (1) A local doctor's surgery
- (2) A local school
- (3) A council housing department or housing association
- (4) A local council (apart from housing department)
- (5) A private landlord or letting agent
- (6) The courts (Magistrates Courts and Crown Court)
- (7) The Crown Prosecution Service
- (8) The police
- (9) The Prison Service
- (10) The Probation Service
- (11) None of the above

RIntr2

SHOWCARD 38

I'm now going to ask you about a number of services. For each one I'd like you to think about using that service as a member of the public. Using this card please tell me whether you would expect to be treated **better** than people of other races, **worse** than people of other races or **about the same**. It doesn't matter if you haven't had any direct contact with an organisation, it's just your opinion I'm after.

RDis01

[*]How do you think **a council housing department or housing association** would treat you?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races
- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RDis02

A local school?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races
- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RDis03

[*] A local doctor's surgery?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races
- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RDis04

[*]A local council(apart from a housing department)?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races
- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RDis05

[*]A private landlord or letting agent?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races
- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RDis06

[*]The courts - that is, Magistrates and Crown Courts?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races
- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RDis07

[*]The Crown Prosecution Service?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races
- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RDis08

[*]The police?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races
- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RDis09

[*]The Prison Service?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races

- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RDis10

[*]The Probation Service?

- (1) I would be treated worse than people of other races
- (2) I would be treated better than people of other races
- (3) I would be treated the same as people of other races
- (4) Don't know/no opinion

RWHoWse

[*]When you said that you would be treated **better** than other races, which races were you thinking of? Which races would be treated **worse** than you?

RWhoBtr

[*]When you said that you would be treated **worse** than other races, which races were you thinking of? Which races would be treated **better** than you?

RDisJb1

In the last **five** years, do you think you have been discriminated against when you have been refused or turned down for a job?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No
- (3) Don't know
- (4) Have not applied for any jobs in the last five years

RdisJb2

SHOWCARD 39

Do you think you were discriminated against because of any of the reasons on this card?

- (1) Your gender
- (2) Your age
- (3) Your race
- (4) Your religion or beliefs
- (5) Your colour
- (6) Your disability or long-lasting illness
- (7) Your sexual orientation
- (8) Where you live
- (9) Other (specify)
- (10) None of the above
- (11) Don't know

RDisPro

[*]In the last **five** years, do you think you have been discriminated against at work with regard to promotion or a move to a better position?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No
- (3) Don't know
- (4) Have not applied for a promotion or move in the last five years

RWhyPrA

[*]Do you think you were discriminated against because of any of the reasons on this card?

- (1) Your gender
- (2) Your age
- (3) Your race
- (4) Your religion or beliefs
- (5) Your colour
- (6) Your disability or long-lasting illness
- (7) Your sexual orientation
- (8) Where you live
- (9) Other (specify)
- (10) None of the above
- (11) Don't know

TLetIn

I'm now going to ask you for your opinion on a different subject

LetIn

SHOWCARD 40

Do you think the number of immigrants coming to Britain nowadays should be increased, reduced or should it remain the same?

- (1) Increased a lot
- (2) Increased a little
- (3) Remain the same
- (4) Reduced a little
- (5) Reduced a lot
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY- Can't Choose

RedGps

When you said the number of immigrants coming to Britain should be **reduced**, from which countries in particular were you thinking of?

SECTION 8: Religion

RIntr3

I'd now like to ask you some questions about religious prejudice.

Relinc

Thinking about religious prejudice in Britain today, do you think there is now...

- (1) less religious prejudice than there was five years ago
- (2) more than there was five years ago
- (3) or about the same amount?
- (4) Don't know/Can't say

RelHowM

Do you think there is now **much** more religious prejudice or just a **little** more than there was five years ago?

Much more now
 A little more now
 DON'T KNOW/ CAN'T SAY

RelWho

Which groups do you think there is now **more** religious prejudice against, compared with five years ago?

RelHowl

Do you think there is now **much** less religious prejudice or just a **little** less than there was five years ago?

Much more now
 A little more now
 DON'T KNOW/ CAN'T SAY

RelWho1

Which groups do you think there is now **less** religious prejudice against, compared with five years ago?

RelHow

How much do you think the Government is doing to protect the rights of people belonging to different religions in Britain? Would you say...

(1) too little(2) about the right amount(3) or too much?

RelHowA

When you say the Government is doing too **little** to protect the rights of people belonging to different religions, of which particular religions are you thinking?

RelHowB

When you say the Government is doing too **much** to protect the rights of people belonging to different religions, of which particular religions are you thinking?

RelDis

SHOWCARD 41

Please could you look at this card and tell me if you think that any of the organisations on the card have ever discriminated against you because of your religion? If YES which ones?

- (1) A local doctor's surgery
- (2) A local school
- (3) A council housing department or housing association
- (4) A local council (apart from housing department)
- (5) A private landlord or letting agent
- (6) The courts (Magistrates Courts and Crown Court)
- (7) The Crown Prosecution Service
- (8) The police
- (9) The Prison Service
- (10) The Probation Service
- (11) None of the above

RIntr4

I'd now like to ask you some questions about your beliefs.

Relig

What is your religion even if you are not currently practising?

- (1) Christian
- (2) Buddhist
- (3) Hindu
- (4) Jewish
- (5) Muslim
- (6) Sikh
- (7) Any other religion
- (8) No religion at all

RelAct

Do you consider that you are actively practising your religion?

(1) Yes

(2) No

RelActF

In general, do you personally feel you are able to practise your religion freely in Britain?

(1) Yes

(2) Partly

(3) No

RelLiv

SHOWCARD 42

I'd now like to ask you some questions about the importance of religion in the way you live your day-to-day life. Please choose your answer from this card. To what extent do you agree or disagree that your religion affects ...

... Where you live?

- (1) Strongly agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Strongly disagree

(5) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Don't know

(6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Not applicable

RelWrk

... where you work?

- (1) Strongly agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Strongly disagree
- (5) Spontaneous only- Don't know
- (6) Spontaneous only- Not applicable

RelFri

... who your friends are?

- (1) Strongly agree
- (2) Tend to agree

- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Strongly disagree
- (5) Spontaneous only- Don't know
- (6) Spontaneous only- Not applicable

RelSch

... what school you send/sent/would send your children to?

- (1) Strongly agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Strongly disagree
- (5) Spontaneous only- Don't know
- (6) Spontaneous only- Not applicable

SECTION 9: Mixing

MxIntro1

SHOWCARD 43

The next question asks about whether you have mixed socially with other groups of people in different areas of your life. By 'mixing socially' we mean mixing with people on a personal level by having informal conversations with them at, for example, the shops, your work or a child's school, as well as meeting up with people to socialise. But don't include situations where you've interacted with people solely for work or business, for example just to buy something.

PROMPT IF NECESSARY: Please think about all the occasions when you have mixed with someone or a group of people on a more personal level through a conversation or some other form of personal interaction, but don't include situations where you've interacted with people solely for work or business, for example just to buy something.

MxOf01

Choosing your answer from the card, in the last year, how often, if at all, have you mixed socially with people from different ethnic and religious groups to yourself...

... at your home or their home?

- (1) Daily
- (2) Weekly
- (3) Monthly
- (4) At least once a year
- (5) Less often than once a year
- (6) Never
- (7) Don't know/ No opinion

MxOf02

...at your work, school or college?

- (1) Daily
- (2) Weekly
- (3) Monthly
- (4) At least once a year
- (5) Less often than one a year
- (6) Never
- (7) Not Applicable
- (8) Don't know/ No opinion

MxOf03

...at your child's crèche, nursery or school?

- (1) Daily
- (2) Weekly
- (3) Monthly
- (4) At least once a year
- (5) Less often than once a year
- (6) Never
- (7) Not Applicable
- (8) Don't know/ No opinion

MxOf04

...at a pub, club, café or restaurant?

(1) Daily

- (2) Weekly
- (3) Monthly
- (4) At least once a year
- (5) Less often than once a year

(6) Never

- (7) Not Applicable
- (8) Don't know/ No opinion

MxOf05

...at a group, club or organisation you belong to, such as a sports club or social club?

- (1) Daily
- (2) Weekly
- (3) Monthly
- (4) At least once a year
- (5) Less often than once a year
- (6) Never
- (7) Not Applicable
- (8) Don't know/ No opinion

MxOf06

... at the shops?

- (1) Daily
- (2) Weekly
- (3) Monthly
- (4) At least once a year
- (5) Less often than once a year
- (6) Never
- (7) Not Applicable
- (8) Don't know/ No opinion

MxOf07

... at a place of worship?

- (1) Daily
- (2) Weekly
- (3) Monthly
- (4) At least once a year
- (5) Less often than once a year
- (6) Never
- (7) Not Applicable
- (8) Don't know/ No opinion

MxOf08

...and apart from any mixing you have already told me about, how about in public places such as in the street or in public parks?

[How often have you mixed socially with people from different ethnic and religious groups to yourself...]

- (1) Daily
- (2) Weekly
- (3) Monthly
- (4) At least once a year
- (5) Less often than once a year
- (6) Never
- (7) Not Applicable
- (8) Don't know/ No opinion

MxOf09

...and again, apart from any mixing you have already told me about, how about in public buildings such as community centres or libraries?

[How often have you mixed socially with people from different ethnic and religious groups to yourself...]

- (1) Daily
- (2) Weekly
- (3) Monthly
- (4) At least once a year
- (5) Less often than once a year
- (6) Never
- (7) Not Applicable
- (8) Don't know/ No opinion

MxHelpA/MxHelpB

SHOWCARD 44a/ SHOWCARD 44b

Which, if any, of the things on this card do you think would encourage people from different ethnic and religious backgrounds to mix together? Please read through the whole list and choose up to **three** that you think would be the most important.

(A) Citizenship classes

- (B) English language lessons
- (C) Social events outside of work, school or college
- (D) Fetes, festivals and fairs
- (E) Shared hobbies, sports clubs
- (F) Going to the same health services, post offices
- (G) Going to work, school or college together
- (H) Using the same arts and cultural facilities
- (I) Using the same shops and restaurants
- (J) Using the same leisure centres/sports facilities
- (K) Going to pubs or clubs together
- (L) Travelling together by bus or train
- (M) Visiting each other's homes
- (N) Visiting each other's community centres
- (O) Visiting each other's religious places of worship
- (P) Something else
- (Q) None of these
- (R) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Don't know

MxHelpO

What else would encourage people to mix together?

MxLoc

Thinking about how people from different ethnic and religious groups mix together in the local area, do you think that different ethnic and religious groups...

(1) ... mix enough
 (2) ... should mix more
 (3) or should mix less?
 (4) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Not Applicable
 (5) Don't Know

MxBrit

Now I want to ask you the same question about Britain as a whole. Thinking about how people from different ethnic and religious groups mix together in Britain today, do you think that different ethnic and religious groups...

(1) ... mix enough
 (2) ... should mix more
 (3) or should mix less?
 (4) Don't Know

DualId

SHOWCARD 45

And how much do you agree or disagree that it is possible to fully belong to Britain **and** maintain a separate cultural or religious identity? Please choose your answer from this card.

(1) Strongly agree(2) Tend to agree

(2) Tend to disagree(3) Tend to disagree(4) Strongly disagree(5) Don't know- SPONTANEOUS ONLY

SECTION 10: Respect

RIntro8

SHOWCARD 46

The next few questions are about being treated with respect. Please choose your answers from the card.

ReWork

In general, would you say that you are treated with respect...

...at work, school or college?

- (1) All of the time
- (2) Most of the time
- (3) Some of the time
- (4) Rarely
- (5) Never
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: Not applicable

RePub

... when using public transport?

- (1) All of the time
- (2) Most of the time
- (3) Some of the time
- (4) Rarely
- (5) Never

ReHeal

... when using health services?

- (1) All of the time
- (2) Most of the time
- (3) Some of the time
- (4) Rarely
- (5) Never

SECTION 11: Self Identity

ImpIntro

SHOWCARD 47

I'd like to know how important various things are to your sense of who you are. For each thing I mention please tell me how important it is to your sense of who you are. Please choose an answer from this card.

ImpOcc

How important is your occupation to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpEth

How important is your ethnic or racial background to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpRel

How important is your religion to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpNat

How important is your **national identity** to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpLiv

How important is where you live to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpInt

How important are your interests to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpFam

How important is your family to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpSC

How important is your **social class** (e.g. working, middle) to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpFO

How important is **the country your family came from originally** to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important

(5) Don't know

ImpGen

How important is your gender to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpAge

How important is your age and life stage to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpInc

How important is **your level of income** to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

ImpEd

How important is your level of education to your sense of who you are?

- (1) Very important
- (2) Quite important
- (3) Not very important
- (4) Not at all important
- (5) Don't know

MoImpt

(1) You mentioned that a number of things are very important to your sense of who you are. Which one of the things displayed on this screen would you say is the most important?

(2) You mentioned that a number of things are quite important to your sense of who you are. Which one of the things displayed on this screen would you say is the most important?

(3) You mentioned that a number of things are not very important to your sense of who you are. Which one of the things displayed on this screen would you say is the most important?

FeConf

You said that **both** your national identity and religion are important to you. Do you ever feel that there is a conflict between these? Please choose your answer from the card.

- (1) All of the time
- (2) Most of the time
- (3) Some of the time
- (4) Rarely
- (5) Never
- (6) Spontaneous only Don't know

Tintsat

For the next question I'm going to ask you to think about how satisfied you are with your life as a whole.

PWhole

SHOWCARD 49

All things considered, how satisfied are you with your life as a whole nowadays?

- (1) Very satisfied
- (2) Fairly satisfied
- (3) Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
- (4) Fairly dissatisfied
- (5) Very dissatisfied
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY Don't know

SECTION 12: Violent Extremism

VEIntro

The following questions are about violent extremism; that is taking actions to cause **injury or death** to people in order to make a **political protest**.

VERtRng

SHOWCARD 50

How right or wrong do you think it is for people to use violent extremism in Britain to protest against things they think are very unfair or unjust?

- (1) Always right
- (2) Often right
- (3) Sometimes right, sometimes wrong
- (4) Often wrong
- (5) Always wrong
- (6) Don't know

VEIntro2

I'd like to ask you about some of the things people do to protest against things they feel are very unfair or unjust. Please tell me how right or wrong you think each of the following is...

VEAnml

Animal rights protesters in Britain using violence to protect animals?

- (1) Always right
- (2) Often right
- (3) Sometimes right, sometimes wrong
- (4) Often wrong
- (5) Always wrong
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: I don't understand the statement/ I am unfamiliar with the concept.

VEPol

Political campaigners in Britain writing and distributing leaflets that encourage violence towards different ethnic groups?

- (1) Always right
- (2) Often right
- (3) Sometimes right, sometimes wrong
- (4) Often wrong
- (5) Always wrong

(6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: I don't understand the statement/ I am unfamiliar with the concept.

VERel

People in Britain using violent extremism, in the name of religion, to protest or achieve a goal?

- (1) Always right
- (2) Often right
- (3) Sometimes right, sometimes wrong
- (4) Often wrong
- (5) Always wrong
- (6) SPONTANEOUS ONLY: I don't understand the statement/ I am unfamiliar with the concept.

VERelol

In what circumstances do you feel that it would be right for people in Britain to use violent extremism, **in the name of religion**, to protest or achieve a goal?

VESup

SHOWCARD 51

In the last five years, have you done any of the things on this card in order to reduce or lower support for violent extremism **in the name of religion**?

- (1) Disagreed with violent extremist beliefs in conversations I've had with people I know
- (2) Spoken out publicly against people who encourage others to support violent extremism
- (3) Signed a petition against violent extremism
- (4) Joined a campaign against violent extremism
- (5) Attended a public meeting to talk about how the community can protect itself against violent extremism
- (6) I have done something else (specify)
- (7) I have done none of the above

VESupO

What else have you done?

VESupNo

SHOWCARD 52

You mentioned that you have not taken any action in order to lower or reduce support for violent extremism **in the name of religion**. Which of the reasons on this card applies to you?

- (1) I don't feel violent extremism is a problem in Britain
- (2) I don't feel violent extremism is a problem in my community
- (3) I was worried about getting involved
- (4) I don't really care enough about violent extremism to do anything
- (5) I didn't know what to do
- (6) It has never occurred to me to do anything
- (7) I don't think it would make any difference
- (8) Other (specify)

VEIntro3

Still thinking about violent extremism; that is taking actions to cause injury or death to people in order to make a political protest.

VERLSup

Have you personally seen anything which has tried to encourage people to support violent extremism **in the name of religion**?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No
- (3) Don't know

VERLMat

SHOWCARD 53

Which of the materials on this card have you seen that tried to encourage violent extremism **in the name of religion**?

- (1) Books
- (2) Leaflets
- (3) Videos
- (4) DVDs
- (5) Emails
- (6) Internet sites
- (7) Something else (specify)
- (8) Don't know

VERLot1

What other materials have you seen that tried to encourage violent extremism **in the name of religion?**

VERLWch

SHOWCARD 54

You said that you've seen materials that tried to encourage people to support violent extremism **in the name of religion**. What religion or religions was this?

- (1) Christianity
- (2) Buddhism
- (3) Hinduism
- (4) Judaism
- (5) Islam
- (6) Sikhism
- (7) Other religion (specify)
- (8) Don't know

VERLot3

What other religion was this?

VcoI

SHOWCARD 55

Where did you come across the materials encouraging violent extremism **in the name of religion**? Please read out the letter or letters that apply.

- (A) In a school, college or university
- (B) In a religious school or college
- (C) In a place of worship
- (D) At home
- (E) At a friend or relative's home
- (F) At work
- (G) In a community centre
- (H) On the street
- (I) Somewhere else (specify)
- Don't know

Vot1

Where else did you come across the materials?

Vrwi

When you saw the materials encouraging violent extremism **in the name of religion**, would you say you...?

- (A) read or watched all or nearly all of what you saw,
- (B) read or watched most of it,
- (C) read or watched a small section,
- (D) just glanced at it,
- (E) or didn't look at it at all?

Vthi

What did you think of the materials?

VERLOrg

SHOWCARD 56

Some people say there are organised groups in their local area who support violent extremism **in the name of religion**. Do you think there are any such groups in **your** local area? By local area, I mean the area within a 15-20 minute walk from your home. Please read out the letter that applies.

- (A) I know there are groups
- (B) I suspect there are groups
- (C) I doubt there are groups
- (D) There are definitely no groups
- Don't know

VERLWha

SHOWCARD 57

What religion or religions do these groups support? Please read out the letter or letters that apply.

- (1) Christianity
- (2) Buddhism
- (3) Hinduism
- (4) Judaism
- (5) Islam
- (6) Sikhism
- (7) Other religion (specify)
- (8) Don't know

VERLOt4

What other religion or religions do these groups support?

SECTION 13: Media Usage

MIntro1

I'd now like to ask a few more details about you. These questions are needed for analysis purposes and to ensure we speak to a range of different types of residents.

MAISrc

SHOWCARD 58

People get their information about news and current affairs from many sources. Of the sources listed on this card, which ones provide you PERSONALLY with the most information about news and current affairs?

(A) Personal experience (B) Relatives' and/or friends' experiences (C) Word of mouth / information from other people (D) Broadsheet newspapers (e.g. Times, Guardian, Telegraph) (E) Tabloid newspapers (e.g. Sun, Express, Daily Mail) (F) Local newspapers (G) Soaps (e.g. Eastenders, Coronation Street, The Archers) (H) Films (I) TV dramas (J) TV documentaries (K) News programmes on TV / radio (L) Radio programmes (M) Government publications (N) Books (O) Internet / world-wide-web (P) School / college / evening class

(Q) Somewhere else

MMnSrc

And which **one** of these would you say is your **main** source of information on news and current affairs? CODE ONLY ONE

(A) Personal experience

(B) Relatives' and/or friends' experiences

- (C) Word of mouth / Information from other people
- (D) Broadsheet newspapers (e.g. Times, Guardian, Telegraph)
- (E) Tabloid newspapers (e.g. Sun, Express, Daily Mail)
- (F) Local newspapers
- (G) Soaps (e.g. Eastenders, Coronation Street, The Archers)

(H) Films

(I) TV dramas

(J) TV documentaries

- (K) News programmes on TV / radio
- (L) Radio programmes
- (M) Government publications

(N) Books

- (O) Internet / world-wide-web
- (P) School / college / evening-class
- (Q) Somewhere else

WhtPpr

SHOWCARD 59

You said you get information about news and current affairs from newspapers. Which one do you read most frequently?

- (1) Daily Express (including Scottish Daily Express)
- (2) Daily Mail (including Scottish Daily Mail)
- (3) Daily Mirror (including Scottish Mirror)
- (4) Daily Star
- (5) The Sun
- (6) Daily Record
- (7) Daily Telegraph
- (8) Financial Times
- (9) The Guardian
- (10) The Independent
- (11) The Times
- (12) Morning Star
- (13) Other regional or local daily paper (WRITE IN)
- (14) Sunday Express
- (15) Mail on Sunday
- (16) Sunday Mirror
- (17) Sunday People
- (18) Sunday Telegraph
- (19) Observer
- (20) Independent on Sunday
- (21) Sunday Times
- (22) Other (Specify)

WhtPpRO

WRITE IN NAME OF OTHER REGIONAL OR LOCAL DAILY PAPER HERE

WhchTV

SHOWCARD 60

You said you get information about news and current affairs from television. On which channel do you watch news or current affairs programmes most frequently?

- (1) BBC1
- (2) BBC2

- (3) BBC News Channel
- (4) ITV
- (5) Channel 4
- (6) Channel 5
- (7) Sky News Channel
- (8) Other Sky channels (not Sky News)

(9) CNN

(10) Other (specify)

WhchWeb

SHOWCARD 61

You said you get information about news and current affairs from the Internet and world-wide-web. Which is the main website you use?

- (1) BBC/BBC News http://news.bbc.co.uk
- (2) Sky/Sky News http://news.sky.com

(3) CNN – www.cnn.com

(4) ITN - http://itn.co.uk

(5) The Guardian – www.guardian.co.uk

- (6) The Daily Mail www.dailymail.co.uk
- (7) The Daily Telegraph www.telegraph.co.uk

(8) The Times – www.timesonline.co.uk

(9) The Sun – www.thesun.co.uk

(10) The Financial Times- www.ft.com

(11) The Independent - www.independent.co.uk

(12) Daily Mirror – www.mirror.co.uk

(13) Daily Express – www.dailyexpress.co.uk

(14) Daily Star - www.dailystar.co.uk

(15) Yahoo - www.yahoo.com

(16) Google – www.google.co.uk

- (17) MSN http://uk.msn.com
- (18) AOL www.aol.co.uk
- (19) Other (specify)

SECTION 14: Demographics Part II

I'd now like to ask you some questions about your circumstances.

GHealth

How is your health in general? Would you say it is...

- (1) Very good
 (2) Good
 (3) Fair
- (4) Bad
- (5) or very bad?

DIll

[*] Do you have any long-standing illness, disability or infirmity? By long-standing I mean anything that has troubled you over a period of time or that is likely to affect you over a period of time?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

DI112

[*] Does the illness or disability limit your activities in any way?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

RCare

And do you have any caring responsibilities for a member of your immediate family or a close relative outside of your household (who has any long-standing illness, disability or infirmity)?

(1) Yes (2) No (3) Don't know

SId

SHOWCARD 62

Which of the options on this card best describes how you think of yourself? Please just read out the letter next to the description.

IF NECESSARY: We are asking this question because the government is responsible for helping reduce all forms of prejudice and discrimination in society.

- (1) K (2) W (3) C
- (4) T
- (5) D

EIntro1

I'm now going to ask you some questions about your work and employment.

Wrking

Did you do any paid work in the 7 days ending Sunday the [date last Sunday], either as an employee or as self-employed?

(1) Yes (2) No

SchemeT

Were you on a government scheme for employment training in that week (ending Sunday the [date last Sunday])?

(1) Yes (2) No

JbAway

Did you have a job or business you were away from in that week (ending Sunday the [date last Sunday]) and that you expect to return to?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No
- (3) SPONTANEOUS Waiting to take up a new job/business already obtained

OwnBus

Did you do any UNPAID work in that week (ending Sunday the [date last Sunday]) for any business that you own?

(1) Yes (2) No

RelBus

... or (any UNPAID work for a business) that a relative owns?

(1) Yes (2) No

Looked

Thinking of the FOUR WEEKS ending Sunday the [date last Sunday], were you looking for any kind of paid work or a place on a government training scheme at any time in those 4 weeks?

(1) Yes (2) No

StartJ

If a job or a place on a government training scheme had been available in the week ending Sunday the [date last Sunday], would you have been able to start within 2 weeks?

(1) Yes (2) No

LKTime

How long ^LILOTxt1 looking for paid work/a place on a government scheme?

- (1) Not yet started
- (2) Less than 1 month
- (3) 1 month but less than 3 months
- (4) 3 months but less than 6 months
- (5) 6 months but less than 12 months
- (6) 12 months or more

Whynlk

What was the main reason you did not look for work in the last 4 weeks?

(1) Waiting for the results of an application for a job/being assessed by an ET training agent

- (2) Student
- (3) Looking after the family/home
- (4) Temporarily sick or injured
- (5) Long-term sick or disabled
- (6) Believes no jobs available
- (7) Not yet started looking
- (8) Doesn't need employment
- (9) Retired from paid work
- (10) Other (specify)

Whynsrt

What was the MAIN reason you would not have been able to start work within two weeks?

- (1) Must complete education
- (2) Cannot leave present job within 2 weeks

(3) Looking after the family/home

(4) Temporarily sick or injured

- (5) Long-term sick or disabled
- (6) Other (specify)

Infstud

Are you a full-time student at college or university?

(1) Yes (2) No

EverWk

Have you EVER had a paid job, apart from casual or holiday work (or the job you are waiting to begin)?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

LeavWk

When did you leave your last PAID job?

IndD

What [does/did] the firm/organisation you [work/worked] for mainly make or do (at the place where you [work/worked])?

OcOrg

SHOWCARD 63

Which of the types of organisation on this card [do/did] you work for?

- (1) Private sector firm or company, including for example limited companies and PLCs
- (2) Nationalised industry or public corporation, including for example the Post Office and the BBC
- (3) Other public sector employer, including for example Central Government/Civil Service/Government Agencies, Local Authority/Local Educational Authority, Universities, Health Authority/NHS Hospitals/NHS Trusts/GP surgeries, Police/Armed Forces
- (4) Charity/Voluntary sector, including for example charitable companies, churches, trade unions
- (5) Other (specify)
- (6) Don't know

OccT

What was your [main job in the week ending Sunday the [DATE]/your last main job]?

OccD

What [do/did] you mainly do in your job?

Stat

[Are/Were] you working as an employee or were you self-employed?

- (1) Employee
- (2) Self-employed
- (3) Government scheme
- (4) Unpaid family worker

SVise

In your job, [do/did] you have formal responsibility for supervising the work of other employees?

(1) Yes

(2) No

Manage

[Do/Did] you have any managerial duties?

- (1) Manager
- (2) Foreman/supervisor
- (3) Not manager/supervisor

EmpNo

How many people [work/worked] for your employer at the place where you [work/worked]? [Are/Were] there...

(1) ...1 to 24,
(2) 25 to 499,
(3) or 500 or more employees?

Solo

[Are/Were] you working on your own or [do/did] you have employees?

- (1) On own/with partner(s) but no employees
- (2) With employees

SENo

How many people [do/did] you employ at the place where you [work/worked]? [Are/Were] there...

(1) ...1 to 24,
(2) 25 to 499,
(3) or 500 or more employees?

FtPtWk

In your (main) job [are/were] you working:

(1) full time (30+ hours a week)

(2) or part time (less than 30 hours per week)?

Usuhr

Thinking of your (main) job/ business, how many hours per week do you usually work - please exclude meal breaks and overtime?

Ifpqual

Do you have any qualifications....

- (1) From school, college or university?
- (2) Connected with work?
- (3) From government schemes?
- (4) No qualifications?

IfEqual

SHOWCARD 64

Do you have any of the qualifications on this card?

(1) Yes (2) No

Edqual

SHOWCARD 64

Starting from the top of this list, please look down the list of qualifications and tell me the number of the first one you come to that you have passed.

(1) Higher degree/postgraduate qualifications
(2) First degree (including BEd)
Postgraduate Diplomas/ Certificates (including PGCE)
Professional qualifications at Degree level (eg chartered accountant / surveyor)
NVQ/SVQ Level 4 or 5

(3) Diplomas in higher education / other HE qualification HNC / HND/ BTEC higher Teaching qualifications for schools/ further education (below degree level) Nursing/ other medical qualifications (below degree level) RSA Higher Diploma (4) A/AS levels/ SCE higher/ Scottish Certificate 6th Year Studies NVQ/ SVQ/ GSVQ level 3/ GNVQ Advanced ONC/ OND/ BTEC National City and Guilds Advanced Craft/ Final level/ Part III RSA Advanced Diploma (5) Trade Apprenticeships (6) O level/ GCSE Grades A*-C/ SCE Standard/ Ordinary Grades 1-3 NVQ/SVQ/ GSVQ level 2/ GNVQ intermediate BTEC/ SCOTVEC First/ General diploma City and Guilds Craft/ Ordinary level/ Part II/ RSA Diploma (7) O level/GCSE grade D-G/ SCE Standard/Ordinary grades below 3 NVQ/SVQ/ GSVQ level 1/ GNVQ foundation BTEC/ SCOTVEC First/ General certificate City and Guilds Part I/ RSA Stage I-III SCOTVEC modules/ Junior Certificate (8) Other qualifications including overseas

Worchal

SHOWCARD 65

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement: *I can do a more challenging job than the one I am doing now.*

- (1) Strongly agree
- (2) Tend to agree
- (3) Tend to disagree
- (4) Strongly disagree

SkiQual

Thinking about your current employment would you say that your job...

- (1) FULLY uses your skills [and qualifications],
- (2) PARTLY uses your skills [and qualifications],
- (3) Or DOES NOT use your skills [and qualifications]?
- (4) Don't know

ChoPref

You said that your job [only partly uses/does not use] your skills [and qualifications].

Is this **out of choice**, or **would you prefer** to find a job which fully uses your skills [and qualifications]?

- (1) Out of choice
- (2) Prefer to find a job that fully uses skills [and qualifications]
- (3) Don't know

HapSki

SHOWCARD 66

How happy or unhappy are you that you are not fully using your skills [and qualifications]?

- (1) Very happy
- (2) Fairly happy
- (3) Neither happy nor unhappy
- (4) Fairly unhappy
- (5) Very unhappy

IncomeX

SHOWCARD 67

Please could you look at this card and tell me the letter of the group which represents your total PERSONAL income in the last 12 months, before any deductions for tax, etc. Please include income from earnings, self employment, benefits, pensions, and interest from savings.

(1) C Under £2,500
(2) F £2,500 - £4,999
(3) H 5,000 - £9,999
(4) A £10,000 - £14,999
(5) G £15,000 - £19,999
(6) E £20,000 - £24,999
(7) B £25,000 - £29,999
(8) J £30,000 - £34,999
(9) M £35,000 - £39,999
(10) D £40,000 - £44,999
(11) N £45,000 - £49,999
(12) K £50,000 - £74,999
(13) I £75,000 - £99,999
(14) L £100,000 or more
(15) S no income

IncomeP

SHOWCARD 67

And now could you tell me the letter of the group which represents your partner's total income in the last 12 months, before any deductions for tax, etc.

(1) C Under £2,500(2) F £2,500 - £4,999

(3) H 5,000 - £9,999
(4) A £10,000 - £14,999
(5) G £15,000 - £19,999
(6) E £20,000 - £24,999
(7) B £25,000 - £29,999
(8) J £30,000 - £34,999
(9) M £35,000 - £39,999
(10) D £40,000 - £44,999
(11) N £45,000 - £49,999
(12) K £50,000 - £74,999
(13) I £75,000 - £99,999
(14) L £100,000 or more
(15) S no income

FinHap

SHOWCARD 68

In the last 12 months, have any of these things happened to you [or someone in your household]? Please read out the letter or letters that apply.

- (A) Experienced a drop in income
- (B) Fallen into arrears with bills or credit cards
- (C) Fallen into arrears with rent or mortgage payments
- (D) Cut back on socialising or entertainment
- (E) Cut back on any other non-essential spending
- (F) Fallen into greater debt
- (G) Lost a home
- (H) Lost a job
- (I) Cut back on food bills
- (J) Cut back on utility bills (such as reducing electricity or phone usage)
- (K) Cut back on donations to charity
- (L) None of these

FinRec

You have probably heard people talk about the current recession or economic downturn.

Would you say that [the change that you mentioned is / any of the things you mentioned are] as a result of the current economic situation?

FinCirc

And do you think that your [household's/personal] financial circumstances will improve, stay the same or get worse over the next 12 months?

- (1) Improve a lot
- (2) Improve a little
- (3) Stay the same
- (4) Get a little worse

- (5) Get a lot worse
- (6) Don't know

HOUSEHOLD REFERNCE PERSON

HWrking

THIS IS THE START OF THE QUESTIONS ABOUT THE HRP.

I would now like to ask you some questions about [name of HRP]'s employment.

Did [he/she] do any paid work in the 7 days ending Sunday the [date last Sunday], either as an employee or as self-employed?

(1) Yes (2) No

HScheme

Was [he/she] on a government scheme for employment training in that week (ending Sunday the [date last Sunday])?

(1) Yes (2) No

HJbAway

Did [he/she] have a job or business that [he/she] was away from in that week (ending Sunday the [date last Sunday]) and that [he/she] expected to return to?

(1) Yes(2) No(3) SPONTANEOUS: Waiting to take up a new job/business already obtained

HOwnBus

Did [he/she] do any unpaid work in that week (ending Sunday the [date last Sunday]) for any business that they own?

(1) Yes (2) No

HRelBus

... or (any UNPAID work for a business) that a relative owns?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

HLooked

Thinking of the FOUR WEEKS ending Sunday the [date last Sunday], was [name of HRP]'s looking for any kind of paid work or a place on a government training scheme at any time in those 4 weeks?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

HStartJ

If a job or a place on a government scheme had been available in the week ending Sunday the [date last Sunday], would [he/she] have been able to start within 2 weeks?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

HLKTime

How long was [name of HRP] looking for paid work/a place on a government scheme?

- (1) Not yet started
- (2) Less than 1 month
- (3) 1 month but less than 3 months
- (4) 3 months but less than 6 months
- (5) 6 months but less than 12 months
- (6) 12 months or more

Hwhynlk

What was the main reason [he/she] did not look for any work in the last four weeks?

(1) Waiting for the results of an application for a job/being assessed by an ET training agent

- (2) Student
- (3) Looking after the family/home
- (4) Temporarily sick or injured
- (5) Long-term sick or disabled
- (6) Believes no jobs available
- (7) Not yet started looking
- (8) Doesn't need employment
- (9) Retired from paid work
- (10) Other

Hwhynst

What was the MAIN reason [he/she] would not have been able to start work within two weeks?

- (1) Must complete education
- (2) Cannot leave present job within 2 weeks
- (3) Looking after the family/home

- (4) Temporarily sick or injured
- (5) Long-term sick or disabled
- (6) Other (specify)

HrpStud

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

HEverWk

Has [name of HRP] EVER had a paid job, apart from casual or holiday work (or the job they are waiting to begin)?

(1) Yes (2) No

HLeavWk

In which year did [he/she] leave [his/her] last PAID job?

HIndD

What [does/did] the firm or organisation [he/she] [work/worked] for mainly make or do (at the place where [he/she] [works/worked])?

HOccT

What was [his/her] (main) job (in the week ending Sunday the [date last Sunday]?

HOccD

What [does/did] [he/she] mainly do in [his/her] job?

HStat

[Is/Was] [he/she] working as an employee or [is/was] [he/she] self-employed?

- (1) Employee
- (2) Self-employed
- (3) Government scheme
- (4) Unpaid family worker

HSVise

In [his/her] job, [does/did] [he/she] have formal responsibility for supervising the work of other employees?

(1) Yes (2) No

Hmanage

[Does/Did] [he/she] have any managerial duties?

- (1) Manager
- (2) Foreman/supervisor
- (3) Not manager/supervisor

HEmpNo

How many people [work/worked] for [his/her] employer at the place where [he/she] [works/worked]? [Are/Were] there...

(1) ...1 to 24,
 (2) 25 to 499,
 (3) or 500 or more?

HSolo

[Is/Was] [he/she] working on [his/her] own or [does/did] [he/she] have employees?

- (1) On own/with partner(s) but no employees
- (2) With employees

HSENo

How many people [does/did] [he/she] employ at the place where [he/she] [works/worked]?

[Are/Were] there...

(1) ...1 to 24,
(2) 25 to 499,
(3) or 500 or more?

HFtPtWk

In [his/her] (main) job [is/was] [he/she] working:...

(1) full time (30+ hours a week)

(2) or part time (less than 30 hours a week)?

HUsuhr

Thinking of [name of HRP]'s (main) job/ business, how many hours per week does [he/she] usually work - please exclude mealbreaks and overtime?

HTen1

SHOWCARD 69

In which of these ways does ^DMNAMES[LDMHRP] occupy this accommodation?

(1) Own it outright
 (2) Buying it with the help of a mortgage or loan
 (3) Pay part rent and part mortgage (shared ownership)
 (4) Rent it
 (5) Live here rent-free (including rent-free in relative's / friend's property; excluding squatting)
 (6) Occupy it in some other way

HTenOth

In what other way do you occupy this accommodation?

HTied

Does the accommodation go with the job of anyone in the household?

(1) Yes (2) No

HLLord

SHOWCARD 70

Who is ^DMNAMES[LDMHRP]'s landlord?

- (1) The local authority / council / New Town Development / Scottish Homes
- (2) A housing association, charitable trust or Local Housing Company
- (3) Employer (organisation) of a household member
- (4) Another organisation
- (5) Relative / friend (before you lived here) of a household member
- (6) Employer (individual) of a household member
- (7) Another individual private landlord

HRPEndi

THIS IS THE END OF QUESTIONS ABOUT THE HRP

Aelse

[*]Is there anything else you would like to say about the topics we have talked about?

(1) Yes (2) No

Awhat

What is that?

Recont

This study is being funded by Communities and Local Government, a central government department. If Communities and Local Government or a social research organisation working for the department wished to collect additional information from you on the topics covered, would you be willing for us to pass on your contact details and the answers you have given for this purpose?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No

GiveTel

Please may I have a telephone number so we can contact you?

(1) Yes(2) No(3) No phone

Thank

Some interviews in a survey are checked to make sure that people like yourself are satisfied with the way the interview was carried out. If yours is one of the interviews that is checked can we contact you by telephone?

Some interviews in a survey are checked to make sure that people like yourself are satisfied with the way the interview was carried out. In case yours is one of the interviews that is checked it would be helpful if we could have your telephone number.

XWhoPres

- (1) No-one else in room during interview
- (2) Child(ren) under 16
- (3) Husband, wife, partner
- (4) Other adult, including visitor

Xdiscu

INTERVIEWER: DID ANYONE ELSE LOOK AT OR DISCUSS ANY PART OF THE QUESTIONNAIRE DURING THE INTERVIEW?

- (1) Yes looked at / read / filled in together
- (2) Yes discussed only
- (3) No

INTERVIEWER: DID SOMEONE ELSE ANSWER ANY OF THE QUESTIONS ON BEHALF OF THE RESPONDENT (I.E. PROXY RESPONSES)?

- (1) Yes
- (2) No